
   

 

 
Fairfax County is committed to a policy of nondiscrimination in all county programs, services and activities and will provide reasonable accommodations upon 
request. To request special accommodations, call 703-324-7000 or TTY 711.  Please allow seven working days in advance of the event to make the necessary 

arrangements.  These services are available at no charge to the individual. 
.    

FAIRFAX-FALLS CHURCH CSB BOARD MEETING 
Garrett McGuire, Chair 

Sharon Bulova Center for Community Health 
8221 Willow Oaks Corporate Drive, Level 3, Room 3-314, West 

Fairfax, VA 22031 
Wednesday, July 27, 2022, 5:00 PM 

This meeting can also be attended via electronics access through Zoom  

Dial by your location to access live audio of the meeting: 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)  +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)  +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)  
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)  +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)   +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

 

Meeting ID: 823 6076 6954   Passcode: 715279 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

1. Meeting Called to Order Garrett McGuire 
 

2. Roll Call, Audibility and Preliminary Motions Garrett McGuire 
 

3. Matters of the Public  Garrett McGuire 
 
4. Amendments to the Meeting Agenda Garrett McGuire 
 
5. Approval of the June 22, 2022, Meeting Minutes Garrett McGuire 
 
6. Director’s Report Daryl Washington 

A. County, Regional, State and Cross Agency Initiatives 
B. Covid Update 
C. Electronic Health Record Update 

 
7. Matters of the Board    Garrett McGuire 

 
8. Committee Reports 

A. Service Delivery Oversight Committee   Anne Whipple 
B. Compliance Committee   Garrett McGuire  
C. Fiscal Oversight Committee   Dan Sherrange 
D. Other Reports 

 
9.   Action Item 

A. 2023 Fairfax County Human Services Issue Paper    Elizabeth McCartney 
B. VA DBHDS Health Docket Program    Elizabeth McCartney 
C. Supreme Court of VA Behavioral Health Docket Grant    Elizabeth McCartney 

 
 

C. Adjournment  
 

Meeting materials are posted online at www.fairfaxcounty/community-services-board/board/archives  or may be requested by 
contacting Sameera Awan at Sameera.Awan@fairfaxcounty.gov 

http://www.fairfaxcounty/community-services-board/board/archives
mailto:Sameera.Awan@fairfaxcounty.gov


 
 

 
 

FAIRFAX-FALLS CHURCH COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD 
VIRTUAL MEETING MINUTES 

JUNE 22, 2022 
 
The Fairfax-Falls Church Community Services Board met electronically due to the COVID-19 pandemic that 
has made it unsafe to physically assemble a quorum in one location or to have the public present. Access was 
made available via video and web conferencing platform to CSB Board members, CSB staff, and members of 
the public. The meeting notice, including participation instructions, was posted electronically and on the 
building in which the meeting is typically held. Additionally, attendees were offered an opportunity to 
register for public comment during the 30 minutes prior to the meeting being called to order.  

 
1. Meeting Called to Order  

 
Board Chair Garrett McGuire called the meeting to order at 5:00PM 
 
Roll Call, Audibility, and Preliminary Motions 
 

PRESENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: GARRETT MCGUIRE, BOARD CHAIR (HOT SPRINGS, VA); 
JENNIFER ADELI (GREAT FALLS, VA); ROBERT BARTOLOTTA (FALLS CHURCH, 
VA); SHEILA COPLAN JONES (ALEXANDRIA, VA); MAJOR DEREK DEGEARE 
(LOUDOUN COUNTY, VA); LARYSA KAUTZ (UPPER MARLBORO, MD); SRILEKHA 
PALLE (FAIRFAX, VA); DIANA ROGRIGUEZ (MCCLEAN, VA); ANDREW SCALISE 
(FAIRFAX, VA); DAN SHERRANGE (CHANTILLY, VA); SANDRA SLAPPEY-BROWN 
(FAIRFAX CITY, VA); ANNE WHIPPLE (GREAT FALLS, VA); KAREN ABRAHAM 
(FAIRFAX, VA) 

 
 ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: DARIA AKERS; BETTINA LAWTON 

 
*Board Members participated remotely via Zoom.  
 
Also present:  Executive Director Daryl Washington, Service Director David Simmons, Service Director 
Eileen Bryceland, and Executive Assistant, Yalonda Robinson. 
 
Board Chair Garrett McGuire conducted a roll call with each CSB Board Member present, as identified 
above, to confirm that a quorum of CSB Board members was present and audible. Board Chair Garrett 
McGuire passed the virtual gavel to Board Vice Chair Dan Sherrange to make several motions required 
to begin the meeting.  A motion was offered confirming that each member’s voice was audible to 
each other member of the CSB Board present; this motion was seconded by Committee Member 
Major Derek DeGeare and passed unanimously. 
 
Preliminary Motions 
 
Board Chair Garrett McGuire made a motion that the State of Emergency caused by the COVID-19 
pandemic makes it unsafe for the CSB Board to physically assemble and unsafe for the public to 
physically attend any such meeting, and that as such, FOIA’s usual procedures, which require the 
physical assembly of this CSB Board and the physical presence of the public, cannot be implemented 
safely or practically. A further motion was made that this Board may conduct this meeting 

AGENDA ITEM
#5.1 



 
Community Services Board Meeting Minutes 
June 22, 2022 
Page 2 of 7 
 

electronically through a video and web conferencing platform, that may be accessed via Meeting ID: 
883 4070 7639 and Passcode: 396005.  Motions were seconded by Committee Member Major Derek 
DeGeare and unanimously approved. Board Chair Garrett McGuire made a final motion that that all 
the matters addressed on today’s agenda are statutorily required or necessary to continue operations 
and the discharge of the CSB Board’s lawful purposes, duties, and responsibilities. The motion was 
seconded by Committee Member Major Derek DeGeare and unanimously passed.  
 

 
2. Matters of the Public 

 
None were presented 
 

3. Amendments to the Meeting Agenda                       
 

Board Chair Garrett McGuire action was required to move action item No. 10 to item No. 6 
 

BOARD MEMBER CONSENSUS TO AMEND AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 
 
4. Approval of the Minutes 
 

The May 25, 2022, CSB Board Meeting Minutes were provided for review, action item 8B needs to be 
revised per Board Member Dan Sherrange. 
 
MOVED BY BOARD MEMBER DAN SHERRANGE, SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER MAJOR DEREK 
DEGEARE TO APPROVE AGENDA ITEM NO.4. 

 
5. Staff Presentation 

 

Service Director David Simmons provided a brief overview of the Behavioral Health & Housing 
Services. The Oversight & Coordination Dept. of Behavioral Health Permanent Supportive Housing 
has offered a contract to pathway homes where they serve individuals who have been directly 
discharged from the State's Hospital system and are a priority. 
 

6. Director’s Report 
 

A. County, Regional, State and Cross Agency Initiatives  
 
Executive Director Daryl Washington stated there would be a Health and Human Services 
Committee of the Board of Supervisors presentation on July 26, 2022. (Time is TBD). It will be 
a joint presentation with me and others about Youth Mental Health and Substance Abuse in 
our Community. The CSB Clinical Leadership team and I continue to be engaged in 
conversation about developing and flushing out the protocols for transferring calls from 911 
dispatch to the regional crisis call center. Crisis Service and Marcus Alert are working behind 
the scenes to draft an outline of what the protocol will look like when a 911 call is received.  
The VACSB Department of Behavioral Health and regional partners are working together to 
make the Regional Crisis Center more robust. PWCSB has received the Marcus Alert dollars 

AGENDA ITEM
#5.2 



 
Community Services Board Meeting Minutes 
June 22, 2022 
Page 3 of 7 
 

first and has started dispatching from the regional Crisis Unit. We had to pause our Detox 
Diversion, a new admission to our Crisis Stabilization Unit, due to the number of staff members 
testing positive for COVID. We continue to get the organization's 10-15 staff testing positive 
per week. 
 

B. Electronic Healthcare Record Update 
 

Healthcare Systems Director Jennifer Aloi reported that Credible is undergoing several 
enhancements, such as updates and the creation of new Modules, to enhance the program’s 
functionality, efficiency, and productivity. The requirements are being reviewed and updated 
based on new technologies implemented in CSB. DIT has given us the official commission to 
say we are planning to submit the RFP. 

 
7. Matters of the Board 

 
Board Member Dan Sherrange mentioned his continued participation in working with Daniel and 
Daryl’s team in developing the Strategic Plan. He plans to keep the Board Members updated so they 
can start to review the plan as it starts to roll out. 
 

8. Committee Reports 
 

A. Service Delivery Oversight Committee   
Committee Chair Anne Whipple reported no meeting for the month of June 2022. The next 
meeting of the Service Delivery Oversight Committee is Wednesday, July 13, 2022, at 5:00 
p.m. 
 

B. Compliance Committee 
Board Member Dan Sherrange reported on the Compliance Committee and the staffing risk 
level permeating almost all the Service Delivery and Operations. Daryl’s team is handling a few 
more audits. 

s 
C. Fiscal Oversight Committee  

Committee Chair Jennifer Adeli did not have any updates for the Fiscal Oversight Committee. 
The next meeting is Thursday, June 23, 2022, at 4:00 p.m.  
 

D. Other Reports 
 
None presented 
 

9. Action Item: 
 
Board Chair Garrett McGuire provided a few updates: We will publicly post the state performance 
contract for public review. The Board Members have approved the amendment to CSB Board 
ByLaws, which allows 9 CSB Board meetings each year. The Legislative Committee will return soon; 
if anyone is interested in Chairing, please get in touch with me. 

AGENDA ITEM
#5.3 



 
Community Services Board Meeting Minutes 
June 22, 2022 
Page 4 of 7 
 

 
Board Member Major Derek DeGeare stated the list of approvals for the CSB Board Officers Fiscal 
year of 2023. Nominated for Chair will be Board Member Garrett McGuire, Vice Chair will be Board 
Member Jennifer Adeli and Board Member Andrew Scalise as Secretary. 
 

10. Adjournment 
 

Board Member Dan Sherrange adjourned the meeting at 6:39p.m. 
 
 
*Board Members participated remotely via Zoom.  

 
              

Date Approved     CSB Board Clerk 
 

AGENDA ITEM
#5.4 



Fiscal Oversight Committee                                                                                                                                                CSB HR Update – July 12, 2022 

 
Vacancies in critical areas* *includes all merit positions (all funds – regular 400 and grant 500) 

 

Service area  Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June 

Emergency 
Svcs/MCU 

1 0 0 6 9 4 12 11 12 18 22 23 

16 CIS 

21 

 14 CIS 

4 HSW I  4 HSW I 

1 Mobile Crisis Supv  1 Mobile Crisis Supv 

1 Peer Supp Spec  1 Peer Supp Spec 

1 Clinical Psychologist  1 Clinical Psychologist 

Behavioral Health – 
Outpatient Svcs  

8 11 12 16 14 16 19 21 22 21 27 18 

7 BHS II 

 
17 

 7 BHS II 

4 BH Sr. Clin  4 BH Sr. Clin 

2 BHN Clin/Case Mgr  2 BHN Clin/Case Mgr 

4 BHN Supv  3 BH Supv 

1 LPN  1 LPN 

Youth & Family – 
Outpatient Svcs 

6 5 5 5 8 6 6 8 11 11 12 13 
 7 BH Sr. Clin 

11 
 5 BH Sr. Clin 

 6 BHS II  6 BHS II 

Support 
Coordination  

10 15 24 29 32 27 28 26 27 27 27 28 

25 DDS II 

 
30 

28 DDS II 

 1 DDS I  

 1 DDS III   1 DDS III 

1 Mgmt Analyst  1 Mgmt Analyst 

ADC/ Jail Diversion 10 9 10  9 6 13 12 13 12  8  11 8 

2 BHS II 

8  

  1 BHS II 

2 BH Supv   2 BH Supv 

3 BH Sr. Clin   4 BH Sr. Clin 

1 Peer Supp Spec   1 Peer Supp Spec 

EAR     8 8 8 6 5 3 4 4 

1 BH Sr. Clin 

3 

  1 BH Sr. Clin. 

1 BHS I   1 BHS I 

1 BHS II   1 BHS II 

AGENDA ITEM
#6.1 



 

 

2022 CSB Board and Committee Meetings 

Fairfax-Falls Church Community Services Board 

*No Meeting 

** Meeting date changed to accommodate holiday schedule 

 Accommodate: Thanksgiving, Christmas Day, and New Year’s Day Holidays 

 

Note: All in person Committee and Board meetings are held at the Sharon Bulova Center, Room 3-314, West 

 Service Delivery 

Oversight Committee 

Compliance  

Committee 

Executive  

Committee 

Fiscal Oversight  

Committee 

CSB  

Board 

2022 Meetings 2nd Wednesday 

5:00p.m. 

3rd Wednesday 

4:00 p.m. 

3rd Wednesday 

4:30 p.m. 

3rd Thursday 

4:00 p.m. 

4th Wednesday 

5”00p.m. 

January * 19 19 20 26 

February 9 16 16 17 23 

March * 16 16 17 23 

April 13 20 20 21 27 

May * 18 18 19 25 

June * 15 15 23 22 

July * * 20 21 27 

August 10 * 17 18 * 

September * 21 21 22 28 

October 12 * 19 20 26 

November * * 9** 10** 16** 

December 7** 14** 14** 15** 21** 

AGENDA ITEM
#7.1 



1120

1260 1240 1260
1300

1220 1220

284
145 165 152 117

350 343

150 150 150

14
7.3 8.25 7.6 5.9

17.5 17.2
7.5 7.5

7.5

20

19.7

12.25 11.9
11.6

11.5 11.8

1800 1800 1800 1800 1800 1800 1800

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

Dec
'21

Jan
'21

Feb
'22

Mar
'22

Apr
'22

May
'22

Jun
'22

Jul
'22

Aug
'22

Sep
'22

Oct
'22

Nov
'22

Support Coordination Service Capacity

# Served within Capacity (Point in Time) # Served Over Capacity # On Waiting List to be Assigned

FTEs Needed to Address Current Over-subscribed Capacity FTEs Needed to Address Waiting List FTEs Needed to be Fully Staffed

Caseload Capacity when Fully Staffed Caseload Capacity with Current Staffing

AGENDA ITEM
#8C.1



844
821 823 825

861 850
898

94
49 67 58

42 41

42

12 11
16 17.5 17.5 19.5 17

1344 1344 1344 1344 1344

1436 1436

1086
1124

1014
976 976

1034
1066

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

Dec
'21

Jan
'22

Feb
'22

Mar
'22

Apr
'22

May
'22

Jun
'22

Jul
'22

Aug
'22

Sep
'22

Oct
'22

Nov
'22

Youth & Family Service Capacity

# Served within Capacity (Point in Time) # On Waiting List to be Assigned FTEs Needed to be Fully Staffed Caseload Capacity when Fully Staffed Caseload Capacity with Current Staffing

AGENDA ITEM
#8C.2



2424
2327

2424 2432 2441 2445 2464
33 156

117 56
131 105

128
83

70 81 95

0.95
4.46 3.35 1.59 0.1

3.74
3.00 3.66

2.37 2

21.31

23.54 23.99
24.79 25.9

23 23

3138 3138
3237 3237 3237 3237 3217

2625 2606

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

50.00

60.00

70.00

80.00

90.00

100.00

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Dec
'21

Jan
'22

Feb
'22

Mar
'22

Apr
'22

May
'22

Jun
'22

Jul
'22

Aug
'22

Sep
'22

Oct
'22

Nov
'22

Adult Behavioral Health Outpatient (BHOP) Service Capacity

# Served within Capacity (Point in Time) # Served Over Capacity # On Waiting List to be Assigned

FTEs Needed to Address Current Over-subscribed Capacity FTEs Needed to Address Waiting List FTEs Needed to be Fully Staffed

Caseload Capacity when Fully Staffed Caseload Capacity with Current Staffing

AGENDA ITEM
#8C.3



*Average number of days from Assessment to Date of First Available Appointment (if known) OR from Assessment to Date of First Accepted Appointment

Jun '21 Jul '21 Aug '21 Sep '21 Oct '21 Nov '21 Dec '21 Jan '22 Feb '22 Mar '22 Apr '22 May '22 Jun '22

# Adults Who Attended 1st Treatment Appt 33 37 20 39 16 9 24 66 63 44 36 41 46

Average # Days from Assessment to Treatment 63 47 59 50 44 53 100 100 84 71 36 41 36

Average # Days from Assessment to 1st Available / Accepted Appt* 58 43 47 44 40 40 94 93 78 64 31 37 32

63

47

59

50

44

53

100 100

84

71

36
41

36

58

43
47

44
40 40

94 93

78

64

31

37
32

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Adult Outpatient Time to Treatment - June 2021 to June 2022

AGENDA ITEM
#8C.4



Jun '21 Jul '21 Aug '21 Sep '21 Oct '21 Nov '21 Dec '21 Jan '22 Feb '22 Mar '22 Apr '22 May '22 Jun '22

# Youth Who Attended 1st Treatment Appt 69 56 38 38 47 40 52 72 52 75 62 69 72

Average # Days from Assessment to Treatment 32 24 19 17 15 23 32 38 35 23 31 32 34

Average # Days from Assessment to 1st Available / Accepted Appt* 30 21 14 14 12 19 29 35 32 21 28 29 30

32

24

19
17

15

23

32

38
35

23

31 32
34

30

21

14 14
12

19

29

35
32

21

28 29 30

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Youth Outpatient Time to Treatment - June 2021 to June 2022

*Average number of days from Assessment to Date of First Available Appointment (if known) OR from Assessment to Date of First Accepted Appointment

AGENDA ITEM
#8C.5



11

16

13

17
16

14 14

18 18

10 10

14

29

18
17

19

25

22
23

18 18

20

15

13

16 16

3
2 2

4

6

4

1

3
2 2 2

1 1

JUN '21 JUL '21 AUG '21 SEP '21 OCT '21 NOV '21 DEC '21 JAN '22 FEB '22 MAR '22 APR '22 MAY '22 JUN '22

SUD Residential Waiting List
Individuals Waiting by Program Type

June 2021 - June 2022

Intermediate Long Term Cornerstones

AGENDA ITEM
#8C.6



Power BI Desktop

Average Clients Served per Day by Type of Service -  May   2022 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

662

23%

Agency Average Served per Day in  May   2022  =  2,818 

CSB Status Report

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

72

3%

285

10%

189

7%
120

4%

618

21%

84

3%

439

15%

48

2%
BH Outpatient

Adult
BH Residential Medical -

Nursing
Medical -

Prescribers
(Doctors/NPs)

DD Support
Coordination

DD Residential Entry & Referral Emergency ADC/JDC/Court

Average Clients Served per Day

% of Clients Receiving Service on 
Average - Average per Day for 
Each type of service, as 
compared to Agency Average 
per Day

217

8% 75

3%

Race/Ethnicity

11%

19%

20%
4%

39%

7%

Asian

Black/Afr. American

Hispanic Origin

Multi-Racial

White/Caucasian

Other/Not Reported

Gender

42%

58%

Female

Male

Age

5%

15%

17%

51%

12%

0-11

12-18

19-26

27-59

60+

262

9%

DD Employment
& Day

BH Outpatient
Youth

BH Employment
& Day

AGENDA ITEM
#8C.7



Power BI Desktop

* Monthly variance compares current month to previous month; Yearly variance compares current month to the same month in previous calendar year (Ex: May 2021 compared to

 
 

May'21
 

Jun'21
 

Jul'21
 

Aug'21
 

Sep'21
 

Oct'21
 

Nov'21
 

Dec'21
 

Jan'22
 

Feb'22
 

Mar'22
 

Apr'22
 

May'22
 

  2,995 3,041 2,993 2,994 3,091 3,077 3,307 2,965 2,984 3,184 3,165 3,092 3,109

May 2020). Number Served Past 12 Months is an unduplicated count of clients served in each area in the 12 months prior to end of the reporting period (ex: June 2021 - May 2021).

All Individuals
Served

Service Area

Individuals Served by Month by Type of Service   May'21  -  May'22 

3,320 3,0503,0473,084
3,317

3,115 3,091
3,292

3,202

3,306
3,0573,319

3,118

0.3%1.5% 22,254

BH Outpatient
Adult

BH Outpatient
Youth

BH Residential

Medical -
Nursing

Medical -
Prescribers

BH
Employment
& Day

DD Support
Coordination

DD Residential

DD
Employment
& Day

Entry &
Referral (EAR)

EAR
Screenings

EAR
Assessments

Emergency

ADC/JDC/
Court 440

542559
432 447

483469 461441 455
546

455
489

9,293 9,320
9,635

8,903

9,380

9,126

9,459

9,070 9,1869,090

9,407

9,215 9,023

949
1,001

848
983

903
852

913
857

951
880 911

969

941

455 446
467 415

463463452 461 449456 457459

436

1,284
1,2281,387 1,206 1,3801,236 1,226

1,330

1,2751,278 1,281
1,215

1,324

2,927

2,643
3,109 2,560

2,897

2,755
2,5842,604

2,792
2,634

2,810

2,625

2,835

421
350

374 396

361

379
414

363

377 378
420

390

371

2,365

2,536
2,7752,755

2,4542,503

2,744 2,751
2,529

2,4552,395

2,576 2,559

90 848485 86

88
85

88

87
85

88 87

85

473 1,047951 917

782

1,024
675

903 926 919 1,036
591

837

714
621

429 703
484546 517547

440
646

496

613
697

228

351
420

198
375

294264 211 212 271

335 379 396

128
171

206
110 131

174 165140 136 121 146 153

178

1,005 941

791
993

885

938899

845 864891

907 926

851

3.3%

-2.4%

-7.3%

2.3%

-7.4%

3.3%

0.0%

1.1%

-3.9%

-11.4%

-3.9%

6.3%

-0.7%

-0.2% -8.1%

5.5%

-2.0%

-4.4%

-9.7%

-16.9%

7.2%

-6.7%

121.4%

-13.0%

53.9%

33.6%

-6.4%

23.2%

5,150

1,949

1,407

3,573

6,780

702

5,278

91

1,252

4,976

3,448

1,886

7,246

2,242

▲

▼

▼

▲

▲

▼

▼

▼

▲

▼

▲

▼

▼

▲

▼

▲

=

▲

▼

▲

▲

▼

▼

▲

▼

▲

▲

▼

▼

▼

Monthly
Variance

Yearly
Variance

# Served Past
12 Months

AGENDA ITEM
#8C.8



Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Individuals receiving behavioral health screening services at Entry & Referral.EAR Screenings

DD Residential

DD Employment & Day

Individuals receiving behavioral health assessment services at Entry & Referral.

Individuals receiving CSB jail-based or court services.  Includes CSB services provided at the Adult Detention Center, Juvenile Detention Center and adult participants in specialty 
court dockets (Veterans' Docket, Mental Health Docket, Drug Court).

Service Definitions

Individuals receiving services from a prescriber (psychiatrist or nurse practitioner).  Services are provided in a variety of treatment settings, including outpatient, residential, 
assessment, and emergency services.

Individuals receiving behavioral health individual or group supported employment services.  

Individuals receiving developmental support coordination services.  Includes individuals receiving targeted case management, monitoring, and assessment services.

Individuals receiving developmental disabil ity residential services.  Includes directly operated group homes and apartments, and locally funded contracted residential placements.

Individuals receiving developmental day support services; individual, group, or sheltered employment services; and self-directed services.  Includes both waiver and locally-funded 
services.

Includes all  individuals receiving services from the Community Services Board.  Includes services for people of all  ages who have mental il lness, substance use disorders and/or 
developmental disabi lities.

Individuals receiving services from adult outpatient behavioral health programs.  Includes the following service areas/programs: Behavioral Health Outpatient (BHOP) - MH 
Outpatient, MH Case Management, SUD Intensive Outpatient, Turning Point, Partial Hospitalization; Intensive Community Treatment - Intensive Case Management, PACT, Discharge 
Planning, PATH; Jail  Diversion; Medication Assisted Treatment.  Includes individuals receiving engagement, monitoring and treatment services.

Individuals receiving services from youth behavioral health outpatient programs.  Includes the following service areas/programs: Youth & Family Outpatient - MH Outpatient, MH 
Case Management, SUD Outpatient; Youth & Family Intensive - Wraparound Fairfax, Resource Program, Youth Discharge Planning.  Includes individuals receiving assessment, 
monitoring, and treatment services.

Individuals receiving services from behavioral health residential programs.  Includes the following service areas/programs: Supportive Community Residential - directly operated 
and contracted residential services; SUD Residential Treatment - Crossroads, Cornerstones, A New Beginning, New Generations; Youth Residential - Leland House; Wellness Circle 
Residential Crisis Stabil ization, Fairfax Detoxification.

Individuals receiving Nursing services in an outpatient setting.

Entry & Referral (EAR)
Individuals receiving behavioral health entry and referral services.  Includes Adult & Youth walk-in screening and assessment cl inical services, case coordination, and call  center 
referrals.

BH Employment & Day

Medical - Prescribers 

Medical - Nursing

All

EAR Assessments

ADC/JDC/Court

DD Support 
Coordination

BH Outpatient Adult

BH Residential

BH Outpatient Youth

Page 1:
  Demographics – Typically little change in demographics over time.  Reflects demographic characteristics of all individuals
  served in the reporting month.
  Average Clients Served per Day by Type of Service – Compares average served per day in each service area to the agency-wide
  average number served.  Individuals may receive more than one type of service per day and totals may be greater than 100%.
Page 2:
  Numbers reported show the unduplicated number of clients served in each service area.  Individuals may receive multiple
  services each month within a service area and may receive more than one type of service each month.
  The Monthly Variance compares the reporting month to the prior month. The Yearly Variance compares the reporting month
  to the same month in the previous calendar year.
  All Individuals Served – The overall number served has decreased from March but is continuing an overall upward trend in
  2022.
  BH Outpatient Adult – The number of individuals served is trending lower overall as compared to last year and appears to be
  due to the impacts of staff vacancies.
  BH Outpatient Youth – This service area typically sees an increase in referrals and individuals served in the late fall that
  continues throughout the school year and drops off over the summer months.  Numbers served are showing a 5% increase
  compared to the previous year.
  Medical – Nursing & Prescribers (Psychiatrists & Nurse Practitioners) serve individuals in a variety of treatment settings. The
  number served for Nursing has decreased compared to March but is similar to previous months. Prescribers’ numbers are up
  slightly from April and continue an overall upward trend since late in 2021.
  BH Employment & Day – The number served is trending lower as compared to the prior year.  Staff vacancies in the Supported
  Employment program have limited the program’s ability to build capacity along with reduced referrals due to vacancies in
  other programs.  Additionally, the implementation of evidence-based practices requires reduced caseloads and it is anticipated
  that numbers may remain lower as compared to previous years.  Staff in the day programs continue to explore options to
  increase engagement for those that are reluctant to participate in on-site programming due to the pandemic.
  BH Residential – The number of individuals served is back on trend with the numbers served in the Fall.  Numbers were lower in
  January and February, partly due to short periods in January and February where Wellness Circle had to stop new admissions
  because of COVID positive cases at the site, and the need to slow admissions at the Residential Intensive Care (RIC) program
  due to staff vacancies.
  DD Support Coordination – There is typically monthly variation based on service plan review cycles.  In March, client counts
  were also higher due to the ongoing waiver slot allocation process and numbers for May are on trend with previous months.
  DD Residential – Includes all individuals served in directly operated residential programs and locally-funded contract
  placements.  The number of individuals served each month is trending lower overall due to reductions in the directly operated
  group home census and locally funded contract placements through natural attrition.  New residential placements through
  community partners are waiver funded.
  DD Employment & Day – There has been an upward trend in this service area as developmental employment & day programs
  have been able to reopen from closures that were necessary earlier in the pandemic to ensure individual safety.
  Entry & Referral– There have been some reductions in the number served due to decreases in demand for walk-in services in
  April and May.  In Mid-October, Entry & Referral launched a new streamlined screening and assessment process with changes
  to the triage, screening, and assessment workflows.  Direct comparisons cannot be made to prior months.
  Emergency – There is some monthly fluctuation in the demand for Emergency services.  All clients who present for services are
  evaluated by Emergency services staff.
  ADC/JDC/Court – The number of individuals served is trending higher compared to the previous year.  The jail census was
  significantly reduced earlier in the pandemic in response to health and safety issues.

AGENDA ITEM
#8C.9



 
COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD    Item: X     Type: Action    Date: 7/27/2022        
 

 
 
 

2023 Human Services Issue Paper 

 
Issue: 

Board approval of proposed edits to the CSB-related sections of Fairfax County’s 2023 
Human Services Issue Paper. 

 
Motion: 

I move that the Board approve submission of the proposed edits to the 2023 Human 
Services Issue Paper. 

 

Background:   

In preparation for updating the 2023 Human Services Issue Paper, the CSB, as well as 
other human services agencies, review and revise positions related to human services 
issues, including those of concern to the CSB. In December, the Fairfax County Board 
of Supervisors approves the Human Services Issue Paper as a supplement to the 
county’s annual Legislative Program, which informs public officials of the county’s 
positions on legislative issues. CSB Board approval is needed on the overall content of 
the paper.  
 
The document will undergo additional edits prior to Board of Supervisor’s approval in 
December. The data within the Fact Sheet will be updated in the fall as it is made 
available. Formatting will also be fixed prior to December approval of the full document. 
  
Timing:   

Immediate 
 
Enclosed Documents: 

2023 Human Services Issue Paper 

 

CSB Board Members and Staff: 

Garrett McGuire, CSB Chair 
Daryl Washington, CSB Executive Director 
Elizabeth McCartney, CSB Legislative Analyst 

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.1 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

 

DRAFT 2023 Fairfax County Human Services Issue Paper 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Priorities ...................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Affordable Housing and Homelessness Prevention .................................................................................. 2 

Behavioral Health, Public Safety, and the Criminal Justice System ......................................................... 3 

Substance Use Disorder ............................................................................................................................ 4 

Position Statements ..................................................................................................................................... 4 

Medicaid Waivers ..................................................................................................................................... 4 

Children and Families ............................................................................................................................... 6 

Children’s Services Act (CSA) ............................................................................................................ 6 

Child Care ............................................................................................................................................ 6 

Early Intervention Services for Infants and Toddlers with Disabilities/Part C .................................... 6 

School Readiness.................................................................................................................................. 7 

Youth Safety ....................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Older Adults and People with Disabilities ................................................................................................ 7 

Disability Services Board (DSB) ....................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Independence and Self-Sufficiency for Older Adults and People with Disabilities ............................. 7 

Accessibility ....................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Adult Protective Services (APS) .......................................................................................................... 8 

Long-Term Care (LTC) Workforce Needs .......................................................................................... 8 

Health, Well Being, and Safety ................................................................................................................. 8 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) ............................................................................ 8 

Domestic and Sexual Violence ............................................................................................................ 9 

Behavioral Health ..................................................................................................................................... 9 

STEP-VA and Marcus Alert ................................................................................................................ 9 

Emergency Responsiveness ............................................................................................................... 10 

Services for Transitional Age Youth .................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Fairfax County 2022 Human Services Fact Sheet .................................................................................. 12 

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.2 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

1 

DRAFT 2023 Fairfax County Human Services Issue Paper 

Note: Please ensure that all track changes are by a single author (i.e., one name/color), reflecting an 

agency-level response. 

NCS TO REVIEW, INCLUDING UPDATING STATISTICS 

The Human Services Issue Paper is a supplement to the 2023 Fairfax County Legislative Program as the 

Fairfax County Board of Supervisors has long recognized that investments in critical health, housing, and 

human services programs are essential to maintaining a healthy and vibrant community that provides all 

residents an equitable opportunity to thrive. 

As the nation continues to experience the various stages of the COVID-19 pandemic, substantial and 

sustained investments in health, housing, and human services remain essential in addressing the challenges 

facing Fairfax County.  While there are signs of economic improvement, significant needs remain, 

demonstrating that many residents are still struggling – in particular, the pandemic disproportionately 

impacted communities of color, people with disabilities, low-income residents, and those experiencing 

vulnerability pre-pandemic will likely face the greatest challenges in recovering.  In addition to the financial 

toll, the disruption, isolation, and stress caused by the pandemic impacted residents of all ages, races, 

ethnicities, and socioeconomic statuses. Services must be administered equitably to avoid exacerbating 

disparities in Fairfax County, while ensuring all residents have financial security, stable housing, and the 

opportunity to thrive.  Further, effective and equitable health, housing, and human services, will ensure 

strong economic growth in the community and a resilient future for all residents. 

Although Fairfax County has one of the highest median household incomes in the nation, significant and 

complex needs are prevalent in this community.  Over 68,000 residents live in poverty and over 266,000 

residents (23.5 percent) earn less than the living wage needed to afford basic expenses in this high cost-of-

living area.  In addition, negative impacts on income, employment, and health are pervasive, and disparities 

specific to certain racial groups and neighborhoods have been identified.   

Historically, the state has underfunded health, housing, and human services, which puts enormous pressure 

on localities to fund critical services and new state mandates with local revenues.  The $4.3 billion in federal 

relief funding the Commonwealth has received provides an unprecedented opportunity to address 

community needs magnified by the pandemic, including affordable housing, substance use disorder, mental 

health services, early childhood, health care, economic self-sufficiency, and home and community-based 

services for older adults and people with disabilities.  As those needs existed long before the pandemic, 

even this substantial federal investment cannot solve decades of inadequate funding.  However, such 

funding can place the state on an important path towards investing in critical core services while committing 

to utilizing sufficient state funding going forward to build on these important investments.   

Strong partnerships between the Commonwealth and local governments are essential in addressing the 

pandemic’s lingering impact and the diverse needs in our communities.  This can be accomplished by 

making policy and budgetary decisions that:  

• Invest in initiatives that offer all residents access to opportunities that equip them for lifelong 

success; 

• Support residents experiencing vulnerability so they can live independent lives to their fullest 

potential; 

• Address racial and social inequities that have created systemic and institutional barriers; and, 

• Create evidence-based, outcome-driven programs that are innovative, incorporate best practices, 

and adapt to localities’ unique needs.   

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.3 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

2 

Priorities 

Affordable Housing and Homelessness Prevention TO BE REVIEWED BY 

CSB, DFS, DSB, HCD, AND COMMISSION FOR WOMEN 

Support state funding and actions to increase the availability of affordable housing options and 

prevent homelessness, including expanded investments in tools and programs to address affordable 

housing needs, particularly in high cost-of-living areas like Northern Virginia, and to mitigate 

evictions resulting from the economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Affordable housing is critically important for all Virginians, but obtaining it is particularly challenging in 

Northern Virginia, where housing is increasingly out of reach for low- and moderate-income 

earners.  Fairfax County is already experiencing a deficit of 31,000 affordable rental homes, and the gap 

between the need and the supply will grow considerably without new approaches for expanding housing 

availability and affordability.  It is anticipated that 15,000 net new units affordable to households earning 

60 percent of area median income and below will be needed by the year 2034.  Development and 

preservation of affordable housing is most critical for small families, individuals with disabilities, and 

seniors.   

The devastating economic effect of COVID-19 has exacerbated this looming crisis, placing many 

individuals and families at risk of eviction in Fairfax County, including communities of color who are 

disproportionately impacted by the pandemic.  Prior to the pandemic, 45 percent of Fairfax County renters 

were already cost-burdened and spent at least 30 percent of their household income on rent.  Cost-burdened 

renters who have lost jobs or had their incomes reduced as a result of the ongoing economic upheaval face 

greater barriers in paying for housing, making them more vulnerable to evictions.  While there has been 

some short-term rental assistance funding and moratoriums to prevent evictions, the pandemic’s financial 

impact will have long-term and pervasive consequences.  Therefore, new substantial and sustained federal 

and state investments in programs and resources that enable renters to keep their housing is essential in 

preventing an eviction crisis and a resulting surge in homelessness in the community.  Funding to mitigate 

the impacts of the pandemic on affordable housing must be in addition to the sizable resources already 

needed to address the existing affordable housing crisis in Northern Virginia.  

The Commonwealth should: 

• Support substantially increasing funding for the Virginia Housing Trust Fund to $125 million, as 

well as increasing the funding cap that each development can request.  This is essential to create 

and preserve affordable housing and reduce homelessness in Northern Virginia, where housing 

affordability poses substantial challenges for the economic competitiveness of the region, creating 

potentially negative impacts to the Commonwealth overall.    

• Expand resources available to ensure legal assistance and aid to tenants facing eviction, including 

outreach and prevention services for potential beneficiaries.  

• Expand the pool of resources available for down payment assistance, as down payment costs are a 

major barrier to homeownership for low- and moderate-income earners. 

• Enhance and create more state-funded housing tax credits and rental assistance programs for 

individuals with disabilities and people experiencing homelessness, such as the Livable Homes Tax 

Credit, State Rental Assistance Program (SRAP), Virginia Homeless Solutions Program (VHSP), 

and previously provided Housing Choice Vouchers.  

• Increase funding for permanent supportive housing units (allocated based on the size of the 

population served) for individuals with severe mental illness, substance use disorder, and 

developmental disabilities.  

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.4 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

3 

• Consider changes to state law to protect residents of mobile home parks, including more assistance 

with relocations, expanded notification requirements (for both tenants and localities), and increased 

timelines.  (Updates and reaffirms previous position.) (Position on state support for affordable 

housing shared by the region.) 

Behavioral Health, Public Safety, and the Criminal Justice System TO BE 

REVIEWED BY CSB AND COMMISSION FOR WOMEN 

Support sustainable funding, allocated based on localities’ needs and population size, for public 

safety and mental health services that connect people who come into contact with the criminal justice 

system for non-violent offenses to treatment. 

Law enforcement officers have often been the first responders when an individual is in a mental health 

crisis; the Fairfax County Police Department responded to nearly 10,000 mental health-related calls in 

calendar year 2020.  Such calls, at times, can lead to incarceration for non-violent offenses precluding 

individuals from receiving appropriate treatment for behavioral health issues.  Fairfax County identifies 

various points at which individuals may be diverted from potential arrest and incarceration to community-

based services.  A co-responder team has been initiated, comprised of both behavioral health and law 

enforcement professionals, to enhance the County’s response to behavioral health crisis calls. 

As a result of diversion efforts, people with mental illness, substance use disorders, and/or developmental 

disabilities receive needed treatment services and supports, avoiding the cycle of criminal justice 

involvement.  Additionally, it is significantly less expensive to provide services in community-based 

settings than it is to deliver behavioral health services in a detention facility. 

Fairfax County continues to use local revenues for Diversion First, a Countywide initiative to provide 

alternatives to arrest and incarceration for people with behavioral health issues who come into contact with 

the criminal justice system.  The program has already had a significant impact – since 2016, more than 

2,400 people have been diverted from potential arrest.  Though the average daily population has decreased 

since FY 2008, the medical complexities of inmates have increased, with complex substance use and mental 

health disorders becoming more common.  Successful expansion of Diversion First will depend on adequate 

state investments in behavioral health services (and accompanying court and public safety resources) to: 

• Provide full funding for the Commonwealth’s System Transformation, Excellence and 

Performance in Virginia (STEP-VA) Crisis Services and for Marcus Alert implementation (enacted 

during the 2020 General Assembly (GA) Special Session and revised during the 2022 Session) (see 

also page 11); 

• Increase the availability of community-based crisis services and local psychiatric beds for people 

with mental health issues; 

• Provide additional resources to expedite the medical clearance process for individuals in need of 

psychiatric hospitalization; 

• Enhance reintegration and discharge planning services for youth and adults at high risk of rapid re-

hospitalization or re-offending (see also page 12); 

• Increase funding for mental health services and substance use treatment for individuals incarcerated 

for offenses that make diversion programs unavailable to them; 

• Remove barriers in order to facilitate the exchange of health information of individuals among law 

enforcement, the court system, CSBs, health care providers, and families and guardians; 

• Support the enhancement of specialty courts and dockets; 

• Provide Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) and Mental Health First Aid training to law enforcement 

personnel, dispatchers, Fire and Rescue, jail personnel, and health and human services staff to 

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.5 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

4 

educate those interacting with individuals with developmental disabilities, substance use disorder, 

and mental illness; 

• Provide adequate funding for forensic discharge planning and post-incarceration services to remove 

the barriers to community reentry. (Updates and reaffirms previous position.  See also the Courts 

position in the 2022 Legislative Program.) 

Substance Use Disorder TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB, HEALTH, AND 

LTCCC 

Support increased capacity to address the Commonwealth’s ongoing substance use disorder epidemic 

through community-based treatment (including detoxification, medication-assisted, residential, and 

intensive outpatient programs) and innovative efforts to limit the supply of opioids, particularly 

fentanyl which is involved in most fatal overdoses in the Fairfax Health District and state.  Also, 

support coordinated strategies to meet the growing need for substance use disorder services that 

target specific high-risk age groups, including youth.  Innovative approaches to prevention (such as 

expanding county cigarette taxing authority to include e-cigarettes) and nicotine addiction treatment 

are necessary to address the vaping crisis that is affecting teens and young adults at an alarming rate. 

Across Virginia, the statewide number of opioid overdose-related deaths continues to exceed the number 

of deaths due to motor vehicle accidents.  Alarmingly, hospitals in the Fairfax Health District reported a 35 

percent increase in the number of emergency room visits for opioid overdoses (including heroin and non-

heroin) in 2020 relative to 2019.  The number of such visits in the first half of 2021 is trending higher than 

the same period in 2020, raising concerns that the upward trend seen in 2020 may continue in 2021.  The 

opioid epidemic continues to profoundly impact Fairfax County, and adequate resources and innovative 

strategies are needed now more than ever.  The 2021 GA took a helpful step by enacting legislation to 

establish the Opioid Abatement Authority, which will administer a significant amount of the moneys 

received from opioid litigation settlements for the purposes of treating, preventing, and reducing opioid use.  

Another concerning trend is the widespread use of e-cigarettes, which have been the most used tobacco 

product among youth since 2014.  Though e-cigarettes became popular because they have been considered 

less harmful than regular cigarettes, the discovery of severe respiratory illness in otherwise healthy young 

people as a deadly complication of vaping has raised alarm throughout the US. 

While the Commonwealth of Virginia has taken action to combat these issues, including efforts to control 

the supply of opioids and increase the age to purchase all tobacco products to 21, significant challenges still 

exist.  Complementary strategies, including well-funded, sustained intervention and education efforts, 

should be designed to support teens and young adults, many of whom may require specialized care to 

combat addiction.  An e-cigarette tax could be a particularly helpful prevention tool, as research shows 

taxing tobacco is one of the most effective ways to reduce use, especially among the youth population.  

(Updates and reaffirms previous position.) 

 

 

Position Statements 

Medicaid Waivers TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB, DFS, DSB, AND LTCCC 

Support state funding and expansion for Virginia’s Medicaid waivers that provide critical home and 

community-based services for qualified individuals.  Also, support increased funding for 

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.6 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

5 

developmental disability (DD) Medicaid waivers and slots, to provide appropriate community 

services and ensure the Commonwealth fulfills its responsibility to implement the federal settlement 

agreement.  

Medicaid funds both physical and mental health services for low-income children and parents, pregnant 

women, older adults, and people with disabilities.  It is funded by the federal and state governments and 

administered by the states.  Federal funding is provided based on a state’s per capita income – generally, 

the federal government shares 50 percent of the cost of Virginia’s Medicaid program (the exception is that 

under the recent Medicaid expansion the federal share is higher for newly eligible populations, but that does 

not affect waiver rates).  Because each dollar Virginia puts into the Medicaid program draws down a 

matching federal dollar, what Medicaid will fund is a significant factor in Virginia’s human services 

spending.  However, states set their own income and asset eligibility criteria within federal guidelines. 

Each state also has the discretion to design its own Medicaid service program.  Virginia offers fewer 

optional Medicaid services than many other states (in addition to federally mandated services).  Medicaid 

waivers allow states to “waive” the requirement that an individual must live in an institution, or that a 

service must be offered to the entire Medicaid population, to receive funding.    

Medicaid waivers are an integral component of the Commonwealth’s settlement agreement with the US 

Department of Justice (DOJ) – the state redesigned waivers for individuals with DD as part of its shift from 

an institution-based system to a community-based system.  As a result, the Commonwealth has mandated 

a significant number of new requirements to the CSBs. The number and types of waivers are set by the 

GA.  Long, growing waiting lists demonstrate the barriers that exist in the Commonwealth.  Current 

Virginia waivers include: Commonwealth Coordinated Care (CCC) Plus, Community Living (CL), Family 

and Individual Supports (FIS), and Building Independence (BI).  Waivers fund services such as personal 

assistance to live independently in a home, residential and employment services, environmental 

modifications, assistive technology, nursing services, and other therapeutic services which support 

individuals with severe disabilities to live as independently as possible in their community.  

Fairfax County supports the following adjustments in Medicaid waivers: 

• An increased number of DD Medicaid waiver slots to meet, at a minimum, the Priority One waiting 

list, which averages over 3,000 annually in Virginia.   

• Automatic rate increases, including an increase in the Northern Virginia rate differential.   

• Improvements to the process for negotiating the approval and re-approval of customized rates for 

individuals with intensive behavioral and health needs who cannot be adequately served through 

the standard DD waiver rate structure. 

• Expansion of home and community-based services by incorporating the Community First Choice 

(CFC) option into Virginia’s 2023 Medicaid state plan. 

• Maintenance of Olmstead rights for people with disabilities and older adults to remain in the 

community following hospitalization for medical crises, including COVID-19 and related 

conditions. 

• Ensuring a living wage for personal care attendants, consumer-directed personal assistants, respite 

care workers, and other caregiving roles that are funded through Medicaid waivers.  

• Enhancement and preservation of the CCC Plus Waiver, and elimination of the weekly 56-hour cap 

on personal care services. 

• Restoration of respite hours that were reduced from 720 to 480 in 2011.  Respite care allows 

caregivers to better manage crises, such as the COVID-19 pandemic (if unused, there is no cost to 

the state). 

• Fully funded reimbursements for nursing and behavioral consultation, training, monitoring, and 

supports.  

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.7 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

6 

• Increased state funding to support a sustainable, well-trained workforce in residential, employment 

and day support settings, including higher reimbursement rates to hire and retain professional 

nurses. 

• Expansion of Regional Education Assessment Crisis Services and Habilitation (REACH) in-home 

crisis supports, access to appropriate intensive residential support options, and community-based 

crisis services for individuals with disabilities.  (Updates and reaffirms previous position.)  

Children and Families  

Children’s Services Act (CSA)  TO BE REVIEWED BY DFS 
Support continued state responsibility for funding mandated CSA services on a sum sufficient 

basis.  Oppose changes to CSA that shift costs to local governments, or disrupt the responsibilities 

and authorities assigned to the County by CSA.  Also, support the current structure, which requires 

that service decisions are made at the local level and are provided based on the needs of each child, 

ensuring that service expenditures are approved through local processes.  

CSA provides care coordination and funding for services to children who: have serious emotional or 

behavioral problems; need residential care services; need special education; or, receive foster care 

services.  It is a state-local partnership requiring an aggregate match of approximately 46 percent in Fairfax 

County. Children receiving certain special education and foster care services are the only groups considered 

mandated for service, and sum sufficient language ensures state and local governments provide funding 

necessary for such youth.  As a redesign for the provision of behavioral health care services occurs at the 

state level to include changes to the state’s Medicaid plan, the County should support policy alignment with 

CSA and continued local decision-making.  (Updates and reaffirms previous position.) 

Child Care TO BE REVIEWED BY NCS 
Support state child care funding for economically disadvantaged families not participating in 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)/Virginia Initiative for Education and Work 

(VIEW), and support an increase in child care service rates.  Also, support maintaining Fairfax 

County’s local permitting process for family child care providers serving four or fewer non-resident 

children. 

Research shows that the financial independence of parents is jeopardized when affordable child care is out 

of reach, and without subsidies, working families with low incomes may not access the quality child care 

and early childhood education that helps prepare young children for kindergarten (families in Fairfax 

County receiving subsidies have an annual median income of nearly $30,000, while the cost of full-time 

care for a preschooler at a child care center ranges from over $15,000 to over $21,000 per year).  Many of 

these families are “the working poor” who require assistance with child care costs to achieve self-

sufficiency.  Additionally, a state waiver from VDOE allowing Fairfax County to permanently increase 

program income eligibility above the current 250 percent of the federal poverty level (FPL) would help 

address the challenges families experience due to the high cost of living in Northern Virginia. (Updates and 

reaffirms previous position.)  

Early Intervention Services for Infants and Toddlers with Disabilities/Part C  TO BE 

REVIEWED BY NCS 
Support increased and sustainable funding and infrastructure for Part C Early Intervention, which 

is a state/federal entitlement program that provides services for Virginia’s infants and toddlers with 

developmental delays. 

The Commonwealth contracts with the Fairfax County Department of Neighborhood and Community 

Services to provide early intervention service coordination and therapeutic services for infants and toddlers 

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.8 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

7 

with developmental delays in areas such as speech, eating, learning, social interactions, and movement (as 

part of the Commonwealth’s compliance with the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 

(IDEA) Part C grant).  The benefits of early intervention continue to be supported by research, and the 

demand for services to eligible children continues to grow at a rapid pace (as more children are diagnosed 

with autism or born substance exposed), but rates have not increased in a decade.    (Reaffirms previous 

position.) 

 

School Readiness  TO BE REVIEWED BY NCS 
Support increased state resources and operational flexibility for early childhood education programs, 

including the Virginia Preschool Initiative (VPI), in order to eliminate barriers and allow localities 

to expand these critical programs.  In Fairfax County, state VPI funding provides less than half 

($7,327) of the cost of providing VPI services to a child in a Fairfax County community-based early 

childhood program (approximately $18,200), which is insufficient to expand the program under 

current requirements.   

Increasing funding while providing flexibility, including to serve children in non-public school classroom 

settings, is essential (if Fairfax County were to use all available slots to serve four-year-old children in only 

public school classrooms, approximately 51 additional classrooms would be needed, creating a substantial 

capacity challenge).  Providing VPI services in community early childhood programs, including centers 

and family child care homes, is key to addressing capacity challenges in public school settings.  The GA’s 

recent changes to the VPI program, such as the appropriation of Community Add-On funding for each child 

served in a community-based early childhood setting, and the authorization of family child care homes as 

service providers, have been instrumental in increasing the number of children served in community 

settings.  Additionally, the GA’s expansion of VPI eligibility to three-year-olds provides more sustained 

school readiness supports for children and better meets community need.  Although the GA has made 

considerable progress, providing flexibility for teacher credentials and licensure in community early 

childhood programs would allow grant funding to be used equitably across all programs participating in 

VPI.  Continuing to have an additional membership verification window to confirm VPI eligibility for 

families enrolling after the initial fall membership verification date allows improved access to this important 

program.  

Research has increasingly shown the importance of high-quality early childhood education programs to 

children’s cognitive and social-emotional development and their school success. Business and military 

groups, including the US Chamber of Commerce and Mission: Readiness, a coalition of retired military 

leaders, have cited potentially positive impacts on national economic security, linking early childhood 

education to the creation of a qualified workforce.  (Updates and reaffirms previous position.)  
 

Older Adults and People with Disabilities 

Independence and Self-Sufficiency for Older Adults and People with Disabilities  TO BE 

REVIEWED BY DFS, DSB, LTCCC AND NCS 
Support funding for programs that promote the independence, self-sufficiency, and community 

engagement of older adults and people with disabilities.  Also, support additional funding for home 

care workers and resources for family caregivers. 

Services to keep older adults and adults with disabilities in their own homes (such as personal assistance, 

nutrition and home-delivered meals, transportation, service coordination, adult day/respite supports, and 

resources for family caregivers) provided by the twenty-five Area Agencies on Aging (AAAs), community-

based organizations, and state agencies, save Virginia taxpayers money while helping older Virginians 

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.9 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

8 

function independently, decreasing the risk of inappropriate institutionalization, addressing social isolation, 

and improving overall life satisfaction and mental health.  Additionally, critical Chore and Companion 

Services assist eligible older adults and people with disabilities with activities of daily living (such as 

getting dressed, bathing, housekeeping, and laundry).  (Updates and reaffirms previous position.) 

Adult Protective Services (APS) TO BE REVIEWED BY DFS AND LTCCC 
Support state funding for additional APS social workers. 

APS conducts investigations and protects older adults and incapacitated adults from abuse, neglect, or 

exploitation through the provision of casework services, home-based care assessments and coordination, 

and Medicaid and Auxiliary Grant pre-admission screenings.  During FY 2021, Fairfax County APS 

received over 3,100 reports of adult abuse, neglect, and exploitation.  As the older adult population has 

increased in Virginia, along with a corresponding demand for APS services, state funding for APS positions 

has remained stagnant.  (Updates and reaffirms previous position.)   

Long-Term Care (LTC) Workforce Needs  TO BE REVIEWD BY DFS, HEALTH, LTCCC, 

AND NCS 
Support legislation to improve the quality of LTC in Virginia’s skilled nursing facilities, in order to 

ensure better health outcomes and quality of care for medically frail individuals, including older 

adults and individuals with disabilities.  

LTC facilities, including nursing homes and skilled nursing facilities, provide medical and personal care to 

people who are unable to live independently.  The quality of care in Virginia’s nursing homes has long been 

an issue, with complaints ranging from insufficient staffing (Virginia is one of 16 states with no required 

staffing standards for either staff-to-resident ratios or a minimum number of direct care hours) to low 

Medicaid reimbursement rates for skilled nursing care (making recruiting and retaining highly qualified, 

well-trained staff difficult due to low wages and limited benefits) to stressful working conditions.  On 

average, nursing homes in Virginia also have higher average acuity residents than nursing homes in most 

other states, meaning that they require a higher level of care and therefore more skilled staff hours.  The 

COVID-19 pandemic has exacerbated many of these issues and magnified systemic problems.   

After the GA considered legislation seeking to address these issues through staffing standards over the past 

two decades, the Joint Commission on Health Care completed a study and made recommendations on the 

overall nursing facility workforce and quality.  According to the Commission’s report, inadequate staffing 

also presents equity concerns, as statewide, facilities with fewer staff are also those with higher 

concentrations of Medicaid recipients and Black residents.  For these reasons, it is essential that the 

Commonwealth take appropriate steps to improve the quality of LTC in Virginia’s skilled nursing facilities, 

including increasing state funding, in order to ensure better health outcomes and quality of care in such 

facilities.  (Updates and reaffirms previous position.) 

Health, Well Being, and Safety 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)  TO BE REVIEWED BY DFS 
Support a continued increase in the TANF reimbursement rates in Virginia.  

Following more than a decade of flat TANF rates, increases were provided in several recent GA sessions.  

Most recently, rates increased ten percent for all TANF households.  However, current Virginia TANF 

benefit levels remain at or below 32 percent of the FPL for all family household sizes (up from 30 percent 

of the FPL).  To further support this vulnerable population, the GA should continue to increase TANF 

payments.  (Updates and reaffirms previous position.)   

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.10 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

9 

Domestic and Sexual Violence  TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB, DFS, HCD, AND 

COMMISSION FOR WOMEN 
Support additional state funding and efforts to increase the capacity for localities to implement 

culturally specific prevention and intervention services to eliminate domestic and sexual violence, 

including continued support for evidence-based, quality programs that provide education and 

rehabilitation for offenders to help end the cycle of violence and provide victims more choice in 

addressing safety concerns and housing needs.  Also, support legislation to strengthen protective 

orders (POs), such as: requiring family abuse PO respondents to immediately surrender firearms 

directly to law enforcement; expanding the prohibition on knowingly possessing a firearm to include 

non-family abuse PO respondents; and, providing judges with greater discretion to extend and/or 

increase the time period of POs.  

Research shows that domestic and sexual violence are major public health problems with serious long-term 

physical and mental health consequences, as well as significant social and public health costs.  Witnessing 

domestic violence is considered an adverse childhood experience and can be extremely problematic for 

children, leading to depression, anxiety, nightmares, and academic disruptions; both female and male adults 

with lifetime victimization experience are significantly more likely to report chronic issues (including 

headaches, pain, and sleep problems) as well as long-term health problems (including asthma, diabetes, 

anxiety, depression, and alcohol/drug abuse).  Investing in primary violence prevention is an essential 

strategy to decrease domestic and sexual violence and build safe, stable, and nurturing communities.  

(Updates and reaffirms previous position.)   

Behavioral Health 

STEP-VA and Marcus Alert  TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB 
Support funding, commensurate with the size of the population served, for implementation of STEP-

VA (System Transformation, Excellence and Performance in Virginia), the Commonwealth’s 

behavioral health transformation plan.  Also, support additional state funding to improve the 

responsiveness and increase the capacity of the behavioral health system for Virginians of all ages, 

including programs that work in concert with STEP-VA core services, such as Marcus Alert,  the 

Virginia Mental Health Access Program.  Oppose the use of a local ability to pay factor in the 

distribution of CSB funds, which would penalize localities that make funding with local dollars a 

priority.   

Building on behavioral health reforms made in recent years, the 2017 GA enacted STEP-VA, which 

mandates that CSBs provide new core services.  As a result, all CSBs initiated the first two services, same 

day access to mental health screening and primary health care screening, before the July 1, 2019, deadline.  

The seven remaining services were originally mandated to begin by July 1, 2021, but implementation 

deadlines are now dependent on funding being allocated for each of the remaining seven core services.  

Funding has been allocated for peer support services, veterans’ services, outpatient services, and the 

Regional Crisis Call Center (Virginia’s 988 mental health and suicide crisis hotlines).Telecommunication 

carriers are federally required to have established and implemented a 988 call feature to route calls to crisis 

call centers by July 16, 2022. ).  Significantly, at no point during the four years of STEP-VA implementation 

has the Commonwealth provided adequate funding to implement any of the newly mandated services.  The 

implementation of these mandates is further complicated by the nationwide shortage in the behavioral 

health workforce, compounded by salary compression for CSB staff and attrition rates, and impacted by 

the administrative burden of evolving regulatory requirements for service delivery.  As additional mandates 

are implemented, the chasm between the funding the state provides and the actual costs of providing such 

services in Fairfax County continues to grow. 

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.11 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

10 

This funding gap is further exacerbated as the state continues to approve new behavioral health reform 

mandates that operate in tandem with STEP-VA, such as the recently established Marcus Alert (enacted 

during the 2020 GA special session and revised during the 2022 session).  The law requires CSBs to create 

local protocols and establish either mobile crisis or community care teams.  Fairfax County is already 

making significant local investments in community behavioral health services, including $4 million in 

annual funding for the local implementation of co-responder teams.  Such teams, comprised of behavioral 

health and law enforcement professionals, align with the state’s goals for Marcus Alert.  However, it is 

important to note that the state has only allocated $600,000 to CSBs in the first phase of Marcus Alert 

implementation and has allocated no funding for CSBs in the second phase of implementation (including 

the Fairfax-Falls Church CSB).  When compared to the County’s funding, it is clear that Marcus Alert will 

be underfunded from its inception, as was STEP-VA.  Additionally, as has been the case with STEP-VA, 

each year that funding gap will likely widen as the funding burden on localities grows.  Finally, as the 

development of the County’s co-responder model was in process well before the passage of the Marcus 

Alert legislation, ongoing local flexibility should be part of state implementation plans. 

Sustaining such a high level of local funding while receiving inadequate support from the state, at a time 

that state mandates continue to grow, is becoming increasingly untenable.  Localities that make funding 

these vital services with local dollars a priority should not be penalized for their efforts, and the County 

would strongly oppose the use of a local ability to pay factor in the distribution of CSB funds or for any 

state support of related behavioral health programs, such as Marcus Alert.  (Updates and reaffirms previous 

position.)  (Regional position.) 

Emergency Responsiveness  TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB 
Support sufficient state funding for intensive community resources (such as Assertive Community 

Treatment and Discharge Assistance Planning) and intensive residential services, to alleviate the state 

hospital bed crisis and allow individuals to transition safely and expediently from psychiatric 

hospitals to community care.  Oppose any state funding actions which disproportionately rely on 

local funding for service implementation. 

In 2014, the GA passed legislation requiring state facilities to accept individuals subject to a temporary 

detention order if a bed in a private psychiatric facility cannot be located within the eight-hour timeframe 

of an emergency custody order.  While this is designed to ensure that individuals in crisis receive emergency 

mental health treatment, it has also led to a shortage of state hospital beds.  The Northern Virginia Mental 

Health Institute (NVMHI), one of the smaller state hospitals despite the large population it serves, continues 

to experience periods of 100 percent capacity.  Although other state hospitals face similar capacity 

challenges, it is important to note that a major factor exacerbating capacity issues at NVMHI is the 

substantial increase in the diversion of individuals from other parts of the state (272 individuals in FY 2021, 

which represented a doubling of diversions to NVMHI from FY 2020).  Fairfax County’s ongoing local 

investments help ensure a robust continuum of community services, and allow for the Fairfax-Falls Church 

CSB to have one of the lowest per capita adult hospitalization rates in the Commonwealth (six residents per 

100,000 compared to the statewide average of 15 residents per 100,000).  However, the lack of sufficient 

24-hour community-based services for individuals requiring intensive supervision and medical services 

continues to exacerbate the state hospital bed crisis.  

DBHDS continues its efforts to improve and increase community-based mental health services to reduce 

the demand for emergency placements by shifting state funding from large mental health institutions to 

community-based facilities, where serving an individual is a fraction of the cost of 

hospitalization.  Ensuring that such community-based services exist requires additional resources, and 

success cannot be achieved by simply shifting costs to localities.  State funding is insufficient both for 

regional mobile response services to prevent the unnecessary hospitalization of children and youth, and for 

the intensive community resources that allow individuals to transition back to community care.  Such local 

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.12 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

11 

investments could help the state alleviate the hospital bed crisis by opening up more beds while also 

providing resources for CSBs to improve outcomes for individuals and the community.  (Updates and 

reaffirms previous position.) 

 

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.13 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

12 

 Fairfax County 2022 Human Services Fact Sheet 

Introduction  FACT SHEET STATS TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB, DFS, HCD, HEALTH, 

NCS, AND COMMISSION FOR WOMEN 

Eligibility for public assistance programs that provide support for low-income 

residents is tied to a percentage (typically 100%) of the Federal Poverty Level 

(FPL).  In 2019, there were over 68,000 Fairfax County residents (6% of the 

population) that earned less than 100% of the FPL (about $12,500 for an 

individual or $25,750 for a family of four).   

However, the income needed to cover basic living expenses (food, housing, 

child and health care, transportation, etc.) in Fairfax County is far greater – 

MIT’s Living Wage Calculator shows that a single adult needs over $41,000, 

and a family of four needs over $110,000.   

Employment  

• The unemployment rate in September 

2021 was 2.7%, representing over 16,600 

unemployed residents looking for work. 

 

Housing 

• In 2020, the average monthly rent for an apartment was $1,787, 

meaning a renter would need an income of $71,500 to afford it. 

• In 2019, over 57,000 households (45%) of Fairfax County renters were cost-burdened (spent more than 

30% of their income on housing).  Over 8,500 cost-burdened renters were over the age of 65.  

• There is an existing gap of 31,000 housing units affordable for current Fairfax County renters earning 

up to 80 percent of the Area Median Income (AMI).  

• It is anticipated that 15,000 new affordable units for households earning 60 percent of the AMI and 

below will be needed for households moving into the County by the year 2034. 

• There were 1,222 people who were homeless in the Fairfax-Falls Church community on January 27, 

2021, the night of the 2021 Point-in-Time Count.  Over the course of federal FY 2020, nearly 3,000 

people relied upon the County’s shelter system.  

 

Health 

• Medicaid recipients increased by more than 40,000 (37%) between FY 

2018 and FY 2021, from 119,606 to 163,942 individuals. 

• Almost 12,000 Fairfax County older adults (4% of the over 55 

population) were uninsured in 2019.  

• Over 87,000 Fairfax County residents have a disability, which includes 

people with hearing, vision, cognitive, ambulatory, self-care, and/or 

independent living disabilities.  

• The Community Health Centers provided health care services to over 

30,800 Fairfax County residents in 2020.  The overwhelming majority 

of those served belong to vulnerable populations, such as the 

uninsured, racial or ethnic minority groups, non-native English 

speakers, and low-income residents.   

 

 

In 2019, there were 

over 68,000 Fairfax 

County residents that 

earned less than 100% 

of the FPL – 78% of 

Virginia’s 133 

localities had fewer 

TOTAL residents 

than Fairfax County 

had residents living in 

poverty. In 2019, there were over 

266,000 residents (24%) 

including approximately 

80,000 children, living in 

households with incomes 

less than 300% of the FPL. 

In 2019, over 307,000 

County residents (nearly 

27%) were age 55 and 

older.  

In 2019, there were over 

95,500 County residents 

(8.5%) without health 

insurance. 

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.14 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

13 

FACT SHEET STATS TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB, DFS, HCD, HEALTH, NCS, AND 

COMMISSION FOR WOMEN 

 

Mental and Behavioral Health 

• The Northern Virginia Mental Health Institute (NVMHI), one of the 

smaller state hospitals despite the large population it serves, continues 

to experience periods of 100% capacity.   

• Since 2016 more than 2,400 people in Fairfax County have been 

diverted from potential arrest due to the County’s Diversion First 

program. 

• In Fairfax County, there has been a 28% decrease in the behavioral 

health population with misdemeanor charges from 2015 to 2020.   

• From 2015 to 2020, the number of inmates referred to Fairfax-Falls 

Church Community Services Board (CSB) jail-based services 

increased by 21%. 

• The Fairfax County Police Department responded to nearly 10,000 mental health-related calls in 

calendar year 2020. 

• In FY 2021, CSB conducted over 1,600 mental health evaluations related to emergency custody orders 

– a 312% increase from FY 2015. 

• According to the most recent Fairfax County Youth Survey, 36% of students reported high levels of 

stress, 30% reported depressive symptoms, 14% reported thoughts of suicide, and 6% reported suicide 

attempts.+  

• In FY 2021, over 20,000 individuals received Fairfax-Falls Church CSB mental health, substance use 

disorder, or DD services.  Over 6,300 residents received CSB emergency services. 

• Though Fairfax County was allocated 146 Developmental Disability (DD) Medicaid Waiver slots in 

FY 2022, 829 individuals remain on the County’s Priority One waiting list, which is more than 25% of 

the total statewide waiting list. 

• Nearly 2,700 of the over 14,000 individuals with DD on the statewide Medicaid waiver waiting list (as 

of September 2021) are served by the Fairfax-Falls Church CSB.  

• From FY 2016 to FY 2021, the average monthly number of children seeking or receiving early 

intervention services for developmental delays grew by 3.3%, from 1,554 to over 1,605. 

 

Substance Use Disorder 

• The number of fatal overdoses set a new record high, with about 2,300 fatalities in calendar year 2020 

– an increase of over 40 percent from 2019.   

• In the Fairfax Health District (including Fairfax County and the cities of Fairfax and Falls Church), 

opioids are the number one cause of unnatural death, with 94 opioid deaths in 2020; all but seven of 

these fatalities were due to fentanyl. 

• Hospitals in the Fairfax Health District reported a 35% increase in the number of emergency room visits 

for opioid overdoses (including heroin and non-heroin) in 2020 compared to 2019. 

• The Youth Survey found that, within a month of the survey date, and without a doctor’s order, 

approximately 800 students reported taking painkillers, and more than 1,000 reported taking other 

prescription drugs.+ 

• E-cigarettes have been the most used tobacco product among youth across the US since 2014.   

• In 2020, more than 3.6 million American middle and high school students reported using e-cigarettes 

in the previous 30 days.  

 

In FY 2020, 61% of 

people receiving County 

services for mental illness, 

substance use disorder, or 

Developmental 

Disabilities had incomes 

below $12,000. 

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.15 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

14 

FACT SHEET STATS TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB, DFS, HCD, HEALTH, NCS, AND 

COMMISSION FOR WOMEN 

 

• The Youth Survey found that more students reported vaping than using any other substances, and 

lifetime prevalence rates were 13.2% of 8th graders, 26.2% of 10th graders, and 37.3% of 12th graders.+ 

 

Gang Involvement 

• The Youth Survey found that approximately 590 students in the 8th, 10th, and 12th grades report being 

a gang member at some point in their life.+ 

• The average age of initial gang participation is 12.2 years old. + 

 

English Proficiency 

• 15% of County residents over age 5 do not speak English proficiently. 

• 7% of households are “linguistically isolated,” meaning the household includes no one over age 14 who 

speaks English proficiently.  

• 40% of County residents over age 5 speak a language other than English at home.  

 

Child Care 

• Families in Fairfax County receiving child care subsidies have an annual median income of nearly 

$30,000, while the cost of full-time child care for a preschooler at a child care center can range from 

over $15,000 to over $21,000 per year (nearly $19,000 to over $24,500 per year for an infant).  In 

comparison, the average cost of tuition and fees for a public college in Virginia is $13,860. 

• In Fairfax County, state Virginia Preschool Initiative (VPI) funding provides less than half ($7,327) of 

the cost of VPI services to a child in a Fairfax County community-based early childhood program 

(approximately $18,200), which is insufficient to expand the program under current requirements.  

 

Child Welfare 

• In FY 2021, almost 1,200 families were served by County child abuse and neglect prevention 

programming.   

• In FY 2021, Child Protective Services (CPS) conducted over 1,900 family assessments and 

investigations in response to valid referrals of child abuse and neglect, and almost 300 families were 

served in CPS ongoing services to keep children with their families. 

• An average of 197 children were in foster care each month during FY 2021. 

 

Nutrition 

• The SNAP (food stamps) average monthly caseload increased nearly 13% between FY 2020 and FY 

2021 (from approximately 20,400 families to 23,150 families) – average monthly caseloads have 

doubled from FY 2008 to FY 2021, from over 11,500 to 23,143. 

• Meals provided to older adults and adults with disabilities through County programs continue to 

increase at a rapid pace – Home Delivered and Congregate meals increased by 13.8% from FY 2018 

(512,881) to FY 2021 (583,743), but 8% of that increase occurred between FY 2020 (539,776) and FY 

2021. 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.16 



ATTACHMENT I 

Draft 2023 Human Services Issue Paper – Items to be Reviewed for Updates/Revisions 

+The 2019-2020 Fairfax County Youth Survey includes responses from 8th, 10th, and 12th grade students. (Note: The 

Youth Survey was not conducted during the 2020-2021 school year.) 

Data is drawn from the US Census Bureau, US Bureau of Labor Statistics, MIT’s Living Wage Calculator, VA 

Department of Health, VA Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, UVA's Weldon Cooper 

Center for Public Service Demographics Research Group, and Fairfax County sources. 

15 

FACT SHEET STATS TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB, DFS, HCD, HEALTH, AND NCS 
 

Domestic and Sexual Violence 

• In FY 2021, the Fairfax County Domestic Violence Action Center (DVAC) served over 900 victims.  

There were 983 children (80% of whom were 12 years old or younger) living with victims served by 

the DVAC.  

• Each month in Fairfax County, domestic violence (DV) hotlines receive over 126 calls on average, 

victims request 71 family abuse protective orders, and 12 families escape to an emergency DV shelter 

(FY 2021).   

• In FY 2021, the Fairfax County Police Department responded to 3,010 DV calls, including 353 

Lethality Assessment Program (LAP) calls.  There were 127 arrests made due to strangulation (which 

is a significant predictor of future lethal violence). 

• 171 families needing emergency shelter due to DV were placed in hotels in FY 2021 for reasons such 

as family size, geographical location, or bed shortage.  117 households were not housed because at the 

time of the call, they did not meet the criteria for imminent danger (no person in imminent danger is 

turned away). 

• On the night of the 2021 Point in Time Count, there were 61 families in Fairfax County who were 

homeless due to DV.  

• In FY 2021, there were 93 households (including 212 children) served in the four homeless shelters 

for families that reported a history of DV.  In FY 2021, 44% of emergency DV shelter residents were 

children 12 years and younger. 

 

AGENDA ITEM
#9A.17 



 
COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD Item:  X    Type: Action     Date:  7/27/2022 
 

 
Virginia Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services Behavioral 
Health Dockets Program 
 
Issue: 
Board approval for the Fairfax-Falls Church Community Services Board to apply for and 
accept funding from the Virginia Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental 
Services (DBHDS) Grant for Behavioral Health Dockets Program. 
 
Recommended Motion:  
I move that the Board approve applying for and accepting, if awarded, funds up to 
$150,000 in FY 2023 for the DBHDS Behavioral Health Dockets Program. 
 
Background:   
Board authorization for the Fairfax-Falls Church Community Services Board (CSB) to 
apply for and accept up to in the amount of $150,000 for FY 2023, if awarded a grant, 
from the DBHDS Behavioral Health Dockets Program. A local match is not required.  
 
By obtaining grant funding, a 1/1.0 FTE new grant Behavioral Health Specialist position 
will provide Mental Health Skill Building Services to docket participants. Funds will also 
be used to provide emergency housing, in the form of the purchase of hotel rooms, to 
docket participants experiencing homelessness and pending connection to alternative 
housing resources. 
 
DBHDS Behavioral Health Dockets Program provides funding for services that divert 
persons with mental illness or co-occurring mental illness and substance use disorders 
from the criminal justice system at Intercept 3 of the Sequential Intercept Model. 
DBHDS is accepting applications to enhance Behavioral Health Dockets. DBHDS seeks 
to encourage the expansion of Behavioral Health Dockets in order to divert individuals 
with mental illness from traditional case processing to a treatment-focused program, 
thereby preventing the cycle of decompensation and loss of supports and resources 
that comes with lengthy criminal justice involvement, and simultaneously enhancing 
community safety by building in a safety net of services and community supervision.  
 
Timing:   
Board action is requested on July 27, 2022. Due to the grant application deadline of July 
22, 2022, the application was submitted pending Board approval. The grant period, if 
awarded, will begin on July 1, 2022. It is anticipated funding will be available through 
June 30, 2023.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Grant funding in the amount of $150,000 for FY 2023 is being requested to enhance 
identification, diversion, and connection of persons with mental illness or co-occurring 

AGENDA ITEM
#9B.1 



substance abuse disorders at the earliest possible point of contact with the criminal 
justice system. No Local Cash Match is required. This grant does not allow for the 
recovery of indirect costs. This action does not increase the expenditure level in the 
Federal-State Grant Fund, as funds are held in reserve for unanticipated grant awards. 
This funding will be available for a one-year period with no renewal beyond that time. 
The County will not be responsible to continue this project beyond this time period. 
 
Creation of Positions: 
There is 1/1.0 FTE new grant position associated with this application. The County is 
under no obligation to continue funding this position when the grant funding expires. 
 
Enclosed Documents:   
Attachment A:  Grant Summary 
 
Staff: 
Daryl Washington, CSB Executive Director 
Marissa Farina-Morse, CSB Service Director Diversion First 

AGENDA ITEM
#9B.2 



Attachment A 

Grant for Behavioral Health Docket Grant Programs 

Summary of Grant Proposal 

Grant Title:  DBHDS Behavioral Health Docket Grant 

Funding Agency:  Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services (DBHDS) 

Applicant: Fairfax-Falls Church Community Services Board (CSB) 

Funding Amount: State funding of up to $150,000 for FY 2023 

Proposed Use of Funds:  Funding of up to $150,000 for FY 2023 will be used to enhance 

connection to treatment of persons with mental illness or co-occurring 

substance abuse disorders at the earliest possible point of contact with 

the criminal justice system. Funding will be used for 1/1.0 FTE new grant 

Behavioral Health Specialist position to provide Mental Health Skill 

Building Services to docket participants. Funds will also be used to 

provide emergency housing, in the form of the purchase of hotel rooms, 

to docket participants experiencing homelessness and pending 

connection to alternative housing resources.  

Performance Measures: Enhance the Mental Health Docket in Fairfax County.  

 Fund services to support engagement of participants. 

 Serve a total of 20 individuals annually in the Mental Health Docket 

program. 

 Enhance required evidenced-based practices developed by the National 

Association of Drug Court Professionals (NADCP). 

Grant Period:   July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023 (FY23) 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM
#9B.3 



 
 

 

 

Supreme Court of Virginia Behavioral Health Dockets Grants Program 

 

Issue: 
CSB Board approval for the Fairfax-Falls Church Community Services Board to apply for and, 
if awarded, accept funding from the Supreme Court of Virginia Behavioral Health Dockets 
Grants Program. 

Recommended Motion: 
I move that the Board approve applying for and accepting, if awarded, funds totaling $50,000 
for the Supreme Court of Virginia’s Behavioral Health Dockets Grants Program. 
 
Background: 
CSB Board authorization for the Fairfax-Falls Church Community Services Board (CSB) to 
apply for and accept $50,000, if awarded, in grant funding from the Supreme Court of Virginia 
Behavioral Health Dockets Grants Program. A local match of 25 percent is required. The total 
requested budget is $50,000 with a minimum 25 percent in-kind match. 

The Fairfax County Mental Health Docket serves to enhance public safety by providing cost 
effective, research-based interventions through an integrated system of treatment and judicial 
supervision that results in reduced recidivism and positive participant outcomes. This grant will   
continue family therapy services first funded through a state grant in 2020.  Last year, there 
was $46,422.50 remaining for CSB to use of family therapy services in FY 2022 so the agency 
reapplied for that funding. This grant will provide an additional $50,000 for FY 2023. Family 
therapy referrals and services for docket participants will be arranged immediately upon receipt 
of the award as CSB has multiple providers in place to accept referrals from the docket. The 
Mental Health Docket, as a new and growing program, continues to reach full capacity. The 
need for these services is anticipated to grow throughout FY 2023. 

Timing: 

Board action is requested on July 27, 2022. Due to the grant application deadline of July 22, 
2022, the application was submitted pending Board approval. This grant project, if awarded, 
will begin on July 1, 2022. It is anticipated funding will be available through June 30, 2023.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Grant funding in the amount of $50,000 being requested from the Supreme Court of Virginia 
Behavioral Health Dockets Grants Program. The total required non-federal match is 25 
percent. This grant does not allow for the recovery of indirect costs. This action does not 
increase the expenditure level in the Federal-State Grant Fund, as funds are held in reserve for 
unanticipated grant awards. This funding will be available for a one-year period with no renewal 
beyond that time. The County will not be responsible to continue this project beyond this time 
period. 

Positions: 
There are no new grant positions associated with this award.  

Enclosed Documents: 
Attachment A: Grant Summary 

 
COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD Item:  X  Type: Action Date: 7/27/2022 

AGENDA ITEM
#9C.1 



Staff: 
Daryl Washington, Executive Director 
Marissa Farina-Morse, CSB Service Director Diversion First  

AGENDA ITEM
#9C.2 



Attachment A 
 

Grant for Behavioral Health Docket Diversion Programs 

Summary of Grant Proposal 

Grant Title:  Supreme Court of Virginia Behavioral Health Dockets Grants Program 

Funding Agency:  Supreme Court of Virginia 

Applicant: Fairfax-Falls Church Community Services Board (CSB) 

Funding Amount: State funding of up to $50,000 for FY 2023 

Proposed Use of Funds:  Funding of up to $50,000 for FY 2023 will be used to continue Family Therapy 

referrals and services for docket participants. Behavioral Health Dockets seek to 

enhance identification, diversion, and connection of persons with mental illness 

or co-occurring substance abuse disorders at the earliest possible point of 

contact with the criminal justice system. The proposed use of grant funds 

continues efforts of the Docket to connect participants to Family Therapy 

providers. Family therapy, when used in conjunction with individual therapy, can 

increase medication adherence, reduce relapse, reduce the need for psychiatric 

hospitalization, reduce overall symptoms, and reduce stress. 

Performance Measures: Enhance the Behavioral Health Docket in Fairfax County.  

 Fund family therapy service to support engagement of participants in the Docket 

program.  

 Provide family therapy services to a t least 20 individuals annually in the Docket 

program. 

Grant Period:   July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023 (FY23) 

AGENDA ITEM
#9C.3 


	CSB Board Agenda_Draft_07272022
	(2)CSB Board Minutes_Draft_SAM_07272022 (2)
	1. Meeting Called to Order
	2. Matters of the Public
	3. Amendments to the Meeting Agenda
	4. Approval of the Minutes
	5. Staff Presentation
	6. Director’s Report
	7. Matters of the Board
	8. Committee Reports
	9. Action Item:
	10. Adjournment

	CSB HR Update 07-27-2022
	2022 CSB Board and Committee Meeting Formal Calendar.07272022
	Fiscal Committee July 22
	2023 FC Human Services Issue Paper
	DRAFT Action Item - 2023 Human Services Issue Paper
	2023 Human Services Issue Paper

	ATTACHMENT I--Human Services Issue Paper for updating by agencies CSB staff edits (002)
	Priorities
	Affordable Housing and Homelessness Prevention TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB, DFS, DSB, HCD, AND COMMISSION FOR WOMEN
	Behavioral Health, Public Safety, and the Criminal Justice System TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB AND COMMISSION FOR WOMEN
	Substance Use Disorder TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB, HEALTH, AND LTCCC

	Position Statements
	Medicaid Waivers TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB, DFS, DSB, AND LTCCC
	Children and Families
	Children’s Services Act (CSA)  TO BE REVIEWED BY DFS
	Child Care TO BE REVIEWED BY NCS
	Early Intervention Services for Infants and Toddlers with Disabilities/Part C  TO BE REVIEWED BY NCS
	School Readiness  TO BE REVIEWED BY NCS

	Older Adults and People with Disabilities
	Independence and Self-Sufficiency for Older Adults and People with Disabilities  TO BE REVIEWED BY DFS, DSB, LTCCC AND NCS
	Adult Protective Services (APS) TO BE REVIEWED BY DFS AND LTCCC
	Long-Term Care (LTC) Workforce Needs  TO BE REVIEWD BY DFS, HEALTH, LTCCC, AND NCS

	Health, Well Being, and Safety
	Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)  TO BE REVIEWED BY DFS
	Domestic and Sexual Violence  TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB, DFS, HCD, AND COMMISSION FOR WOMEN

	Behavioral Health
	STEP-VA and Marcus Alert  TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB
	Emergency Responsiveness  TO BE REVIEWED BY CSB


	Fairfax County 2022 Human Services Fact Sheet
	Fairfax County 2022 Human Services Fact Sheet
	Fairfax County 2022 Human Services Fact Sheet
	Fairfax County 2022 Human Services Fact Sheet


	DRAFT Action Item - DBHDS BH Dockets Program
	DRAFT Action Item - Supreme Court of VA BH Docket Grant

